2004

# George Carroll Parr and Carlena Sue Parr v. Clifford Stubbs : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

**JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT**

Defendant appeals from an Order To Remove Wrongful Lien under Utah Code Ann. § 38-9-7. The Utah Court Of Appeals has jurisdiction in this matter pursuant to § 78-2a-3(2)(j), Utah Code Ann. 1953, as amended.

**PARTIES**

CLIFFORD L STUBBS, Appellant/Respondent, vs GEORGE CARROLL  
PARR and CARLENA SUE PAAR, Appellee(s)/Petitioner(s)

## STATEMENT OF ISSUE

1. The issue: insufficient service of process of PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF WRONGFUL LIEN (Index # 17) wherein the law is clear in U.C.A. § 38-9-7(3)(c), which plainly states:

“The record interest holder shall serve a copy of the petition on the lien claimant ... pursuant to Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 4, Process.” (emphasis added)

- a. Petitioner did **not** serve Respondent in accordance of U.R.C.P., Rule 4 with the “petition” as the matter is filed before the Fourth Judicial District Court, Provo Department on the 1st day of August, 2003, wherein the Court states that notice is given, when in fact NO notice is given and even the Court’s record attests of no proof of service.
  - 1.) The docket record of said Provo Court as filed by Petitioners counsel does NOT provide any proof of service and/or Certificate of Mailing by Petitioner on Respondent of said petition. By no service in accordance of U.R.C.P., Rule 4, Process and Rule 5, the law requires that Respondent must receive service of all pleading(s). The Respondent is given no clue as to what the Petitioners are claiming under service of an Order For Hearing as signed by the Honorable Judge Gary D. Stott for the 24th day of October, 2003.
  - 2.) In all courts of limited jurisdiction, the record of the case, including

pleadings, must support any claim of subject-matter jurisdiction. Without the required service from the Petitioner of the subject-matter pleading(s) upon the Respondent, any claim by Petitioner is moot. If there is no service of subject-matter pleading(s) on the Respondent the presiding judge acts without subject-matter jurisdiction and his orders are void, having no legal force or effect and simply without service of above said petition (Petition For Removal Of Wrongful Lien) the Court as held on said date is without jurisdiction in accordance of law. Without Defendant's knowledge of the petition or attachment(s) as [affidavit?] the Court lacks subject matter jurisdiction.

- b. Nor did Petitioner serve Respondent with "MOTION FOR HEARING" (Index #18) as the record show as filed on the 11th day of September, 2003.
- c. In Court on the 24th day of October, 2003, Petitioners counsel refers to an Affidavit of GEORGE CARROLL PAAR of which there is no service on Respondent.
- d. Respondent is yet to receive said PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF WRONGFUL LIEN, MOTION FOR HEARING or the questionable Affidavit of GEORGE CARROLL PARR that counsel relies on for release of wrongful lien as questioned before the Court as asked "are you relying on the affidavit only?" to which the answer is affirmative.
- e. The first entry of Certificate of Mailing is reflected in the docket record of said Court begins with the entry of a filed Order For Hearing, dated the 22nd day of September, 2003.

1. The docket record shows a Certificate of Mailing, dated the 23rd day of September, 2003, Order For Hearing (Index # 20) as was served on Respondent.
  2. The only attachment is Order For Hearing, not petition, motion or Affidavit.
- 
2. U.C.A. § 38-9-7(3)(b) provides that if the Court finds the petition sufficient, the Court shall schedule a hearing within ten (10) days to determine whether the document is a wrongful lien.
    - a. Said PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF WRONGFUL LIEN is filed with the Fourth Judicial District Court under Case No. 030403543 on the 1st day of August, 2003 (Index # 17). The Court on the 8th day of September, 2003 set a removal of lien hearing for the 30th day of September, 2003, which was by correct of calendar reset for the 24th day of October, 2003, and thus making said hearing within some eighty five (85) days.

### **CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AND RULES**

Utah Code Annotated §§ 38-9-7(3)(c) and 38-9-7(3)(b)  
Utah Rules of Civil Proc., Rule 4  
Utah Rules of Civil Proc., Rule 5  
Rule 60(b)(3)  
Rule 60(b)(4)  
Rule 60(a)  
Utah Const. Art. I. § 11  
U. S. Constitution, Article 1, § 10, cls. 1



### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

3. On the 24th day of October, 2003, Petitioner's counsel represents before the Court that "This matter is being handled under Section 38-9-1 etc., dealing with wrongful liens it is a ??? petition only and service is not required, because of the way the procedure is set up in this section" of which the Court agrees with Petitioner's counsel.
  - a. The law clearly requires the Petitioner (record interest holder) of serving a copy of the petition on lien claimant and nowhere in U.C.A. § 38-9-1 et.seq. does the law provide that service is not required, because as quoted above the law specifies otherwise.
  - b. without making service on Respondent of said PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF WRONGFUL LIEN, Petitioner's counsel should be barred from proceeding into the case without having made service of the above said document(s) that are on file and in the record of the Court.
  - c. Because of Petitioners insufficiency of process on Respondent, especially in the fact that Respondent does not know any detail of said Petition, Motion For Hearing and the content of the Affidavit Of GEORGE CARROLL PARR, thereby the scheduled Hearing is fatally flawed without merit.

## **STATEMENT OF PROCEEDING**

Pursuant Of Utah Rules Of Appellate Procedure, Rule 11(g) Respondent provides the best available means and recollection of Order For Hearing, the 24th day of October, 2003:

- A. Court begins: the statute [38-9-7] provides a process for an initial hearing to address the question as to whether or not there is a wrongful lien.
- B. Respondent by and through Agent, petition's the Court for dismissal for lack of service of Petition For Removal Of Wrongful Lien and Motion. Without service on the Respondent, the Court lacks subject matter jurisdiction.
- C. Petitioner's counsel asserts that "This matter is being handled under Section 38-9-1 etc., dealing with wrongful liens it is a current petition only and service is not required, because of the way the procedure is set up in this section,"
  - a. Court response: right.
- D. Court continues: dealing with U.C.A. § 38-9-7 the petition has been filed and noticed and parties who have interest with respect to the real property are present here; the procedure is outlined in that section; Respondent raises the point that Petitioners are not present, but almost immediately the Court states it does not know who is present and will find out who is here, which never transpired.
- E. The Court refers to an affidavit by Petitioner (Respondent does not have a clue where this affidavit came from, what, when or where) that the Court has read it and asks Petitioner's counsel, is that all that the Plaintiff is relying on, which

Petitioner 's counsel affirms.