2004

George Carroll Paar and Carlena Sue Paar v. Clifford L. Stubbs : Brief of Appellees

Utah Court of Appeals

I. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR APPEAL

The issue presented by this case is whether the trial court erred in awarding the Paars an Order to Remove the Wrongful Liens filed by Stubbs against the title to their property based upon an alleged lack of proper service under Rule 4 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

II. STANDARD OF REVIEW

The trial court heard this matter pursuant to a petition for the removal of wrongful lien filed by the Paars in order to remove certain filings by Stubbs from the title to their property.

The standard of review on issues of service of process is a correction of error standard. Parkside Salt Lake Corp. v. Insure-Rite, 2001 UT App. 347, 37 P.3d 1202, 1205 (Ut.Ct. App. 2001); Bonneville Billing v. Whatley, 949 P.2d 768, 771 (Ut. Ct. App. 1997). Further, as the issue involves the interpretation of the Wrongful Lien statute found in Utah Code Annotated §39-9-1 et seq., there is a question of law to be reviewed for correctness. Russell v. Thomas, 2000 UT App 82, 999 P.2d 1244, 1247.

To challenge the trial court's findings, "it is the appellant's burden to marshall the evidence, citing the appellate court to all the evidence in the record that would support the determination reached by the trial court and then demonstrate why, even when viewed in the light most favorable to the court below, it is insufficient to support the finding under attack. " Interiors Contracting, Inc. v. Smith, Halander & Smith Associates, 881 P.2d 929, 933 (Utah App. 1994)(citations omitted). Further, "[i]n order to properly discharge the duty of

marshaling the evidence, the challenger must present, in comprehensive and fastidious order, every scrap of competent evidence introduced at trial which supports the very findings the Stubbs resists.” Id. (citing West Valley City v. Majestic Inv. Co., 818 P.2d 1311, 1313 (Utah App. 1991). If the appellant fails to marshal the evidence supporting the finding under attack, that finding is presumed to be valid. See Saunders v. Sharp, 793 P.2d 927, 931 (Utah App. 1990).

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. On August 11, 2003, the Paars filed a Petition for the Removal of Wrongful Lien (the “Petition”) in the Fourth Judicial District Court, including the Affidavit of George Paar. Record 17

2. Upon review of the Petition on or about September 8, 2003, the district court found it sufficient and scheduled a hearing for the Petition for September 30, 2003, which hearing was rescheduled to October 24, 2003 per the court’s request. Court Docket.

3. A Motion for Hearing was filed on or about September 11, 2003 and the Order was subsequently signed on September 22, 2003. Record 18, 19

4. Notice of the hearing date as to the Petition for the Removal of the Wrongful Lien against the Paar’s property was sent to Stubbs by both the district court itself and twice by the Paars to Stubbs. Record 20, 21

5. The hearing was held on October 24, 2003, the honorable Gary D. Stott presiding, with counsel for the Paars present for the Paars and Stubbs present pro se. Record 24

6. The district court heard oral argument from both parties as to the sufficiency of the notice of the summary proceeding given to Stubbs and on the merits of the case, i.e., the alleged basis for Stubbs's alleged Lien for Debt and UCC filings against the Paar's property.

7. After oral argument concluded, the trial court concluded that notice was proper pursuant to Utah Code Annotated §38-9-7 and that Stubbs was fully aware of the claims being asserted by the Paars as to the alleged wrongful lien. Further, the trial court found that Stubbs's filings against the title to the Paars' property were wrongful and were therefore void ab initio. Record 24

8. On November 12, 2003, Stubbs filed "Preseve Petition to Set Aside Order of Wrongful Lien. Record 29

9. On November 12, 2003, the Paars filed an Objection to Stubbs's "Preserve Petition to Set Aside Order of Wrongful Lien." Record 36

10. On November 20, 2003, Stubbs filed a Petition to Set Aside Order of Wrongful Lien. Record 40

11. On November 17, 2003, the Paars filed an Objection to Stubbs's Petition to Set Aside Order of Wrongful Lien. Record 39

12. On November 20, 2003, Stubbs filed a Notice to Submit for Decision on his Petition to Set Aside Order of Wrongful Lien, which was addressed in the Minute Entry dated November 20, 2003. Record 58

13. On December 31, 2003, the Order to Remove Wrongful Lien was signed and entered by the district court, with the changes requested by the

district court including the denial of Stubbs's Petition to Set Aside Order of Wrongful Lien. Record 52

14. On January 20, 2004, Stubbs filed a Petition for Appeal of Order to Remove Wrongful Lien with Stay Pending Appeal. Record 55

15. On January 28, 2004, the Paars filed an Objection to Petition for Appeal of Order to Remove Wrongful Lien with Stay Pending Appeal. Record 60

16. On January 28, 2004, Stubbs filed an Amended Petition and Motion to Set Aside Order of Wrongful Lien and a Petition Under Rule 60(a) to Set Aside or Correct Order of Wrongful Lien, along with a Notice to Submit for Decision. Record 69, 74, 76

17. On February 11, 2004, the Paars filed an Objection to Amended Petition to Set Aside Order of Wrongful Lien. Record 82

IV. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

1. On or about May 1, 1990, George Carroll Paar and Carlana Sue Paar obtained the ownership interest in the Property pursuant to a Warranty Deed executed by Patterson Construction as grantor to George Carrol Paar and Carlana Sue Paar as grantees, which was recorded in the Utah County Recorder's Office on May 1, 1990 as Entry No. 13654 in Book 2686 at page 265.

2. On or about May 1, 2003, Stubbs filed a Lien For Debt ("Lien") in the Utah County Recorder's Office as Entry No. 66142:2003, referencing a Utah Department of Commerce filing ("UCC Filing") related to an alleged self-executing Security Agreement of Copyright Notice ("Security Agreement") allegedly ratified by George Carroll Paar by silence.

3. The UCC Filing reference by the Lien was recorded by the Stubbs in the Utah Department of Commerce on February 27, 2002, listing George Paar, IndyMac et al. as the debtor and himself as the secured party, also in reference to the alleged Security Agreement.

4. The Lien, including the UCC Filing, is a wrongful lien under Utah Code Annotated §39-9-1 in that it purport to create a lien or encumbrance on an owner's interest in certain real property and at the time that it was recorded, it was not expressly authorized by a state or federal statute, nor authorized by or contained in an order or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction in this state, nor authorized by petitioners as the owners of record of the Property.

5. Further, Stubbs knew or had reason to know that the Lien, including the UCC Filing was a wrongful lien in that it was groundless and contained false claims by Stubbs to have a security interest against George Paar that did not and does not in fact exist.

6. At no time did the Paars enter into any agreement with Stubbs to give him any security interest in any of their property, real or personal, nor were they ever indebted to Stubbs in any manner or for any reason.

7. At no time did the Paars, as record owners of the property located at 355 East Ridge Circle, Alpine Utah 84004, authorize Stubbs, in writing or otherwise, to file for recording any lien or encumbrance on said property.

8. Mr. Paar's only connection to Stubbs was as the agent involved in evicting Stubbs from a separate property after a foreclosure sale.

9. Stubbs responded to the trial court's inquiry about the legal and factual basis to support his claim that the liens were not wrongful, to which Stubbs responded by claiming an alleged contract between him and Mr. Paar regarding usage rights to Stubbs's alleged "copyrighted" name that was alleged agreed to by Mr. Paar by his silence in the face of a demand letter sent by Stubbs and Mr. Paar's use of Stubbs's "copyrighted" name during eviction proceedings against Stubbs that occurred prior to that date. Stubbs provided documentation regarding his alleged claim against Mr. Paar. Addendum.

V. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Stubbs filed wrongful liens against the real property of the Paars, who petitioned the trial court to nullify based upon the wrongful liens being an encumbrance and a cloud on the title to their real property. The trial court found the petition sufficient and scheduled a hearing on the matter in order to allow Stubbs an opportunity to defend the merits of his liens. Notice of the summary proceeding was provided to Stubbs, who attended the hearing personally and presented evidence as to why he believed that his liens were valid.

Stubbs received adequate notice of Paars' claims for the removal of the liens from the title to their property from both the Paars and the trial court and was afforded an opportunity to defend said liens. Rule 4 should be construed liberally in support of the litigation of the matter upon its merits, especially where any defects in the proof of service did not act to prejudice Stubbs. Stubbs had actual notice of the petition and the facts upon which Paars' claim for removal of the wrongful liens from their property and in fact appeared at the time and place

set for the hearing prepared to argue the validity of his claimed liens against the Paars. The trial court found that Stubbs's liens were in fact wrongful and ordered that the liens be removed from the Paars' property as void ab initio.

V. ARGUMENT

Stubbs's claim raised at the hearing in the trial court on Paars' Petition for Removal of Wrongful Lien was that the matter should be dismissed based upon an alleged failure of personal service of a summons and complaint upon him in accordance with Rule 4 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, thereby depriving the trial court of subject matter jurisdiction. District courts have original jurisdiction over all civil and criminal matters not otherwise excepted by the Utah Constitution or prohibited by law in accordance with Utah Code Annotated §78-3-4 and subject matter jurisdiction is conferred upon the district courts upon the filing of a complaint or by the service of a summons and complaint, whichever occurs first, under Rule 3(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The district court would therefore have subject matter jurisdiction from the date of the filing of the Petition for Removal of Wrongful Lien.

Utah Code Annotated §38-9-1 et seq. deals with wrongful liens being filed against real property and allows for a summary procedure in order to obtain a quick hearing on the issue of whether or not the lien complained of by the petitioner is wrongful. It allows for a record interest holder of the real property against which a wrongful lien has been filed to petition for summary relief to nullify the lien. See Utah Code Annotated §38-9-7(1). The petition must set forth specifically a claim that the lien complained of is wrongful under the definition set

forth in Section 38-9-1 and be supported by a sworn affidavit of the record interest holder. The trial court reviews the petition and if the petition is found to be insufficient, the trial court may dismiss the petition without a hearing. If the petition is found to be sufficient, the trial court is to schedule a hearing within ten (10) days in order to determine whether the lien is in fact wrongful. Section 38-9-7(c) provides for the record interest holder to provide the lien claimant with notice of the claim asserted and the hearing date so as to enable the lien claimant the opportunity to defend the alleged wrongful lien by serving a copy of the petition and a notice of the hearing as allowed by Rule 4 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The summary proceeding is for the determination as to the validity of the lien only and does not encompass any other claims or restrict any other legal remedies.

Stubbs alleges that he did not get properly served with a copy of the Petition for Removal of Wrongful Lien based upon the fact that none of the Certificates of Mailing on record with the trial court specifically referred the Petition for Removal of Wrongful Lien and that, therefore, not only should the Order for Removal of Wrongful Lien be set aside, but that the Petition for Removal of Wrongful Lien should be dismissed with prejudice. Stubbs does not provide any caselaw to support either position.

Rule 4(d) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provides that process can be served by mail provided that the defendant signs a document indicating receipt, with service being complete upon the date the receipt is signed. Proof of the receipt by Stubbs of at least one of the three notices sent to Stubbs was

filed with the trial court. At the hearing, Stubbs alleged that he was never personally served with a summons and complaint in accordance with Rule 4, to which the response was that no such service was required since this was not a traditional summons and complaint but was brought under the summary procedure set forth in Utah Code Annotated Section 38-9-7. The trial court found that Stubbs had received the notice required by the statute and had appeared at the time appointed for the hearing prepared to argue the matter; therefore, Stubbs's motion to dismiss was denied.

The Utah Supreme Court has previously stated that “[w]hen the proper defendant has received actual notice of the suit and notice of the facts upon which the complaint is based, the possibility of prejudice is greatly diminished” and that [i]n the absence of prejudice, it is appropriate to pursue that policy which favors resolution of disputes on the merits rather than technicalities.” Meyers v. Interwest Corp., 632 P12d 879, 881 (Utah 1981). The Utah Rules of Civil Procedure are “liberally construed to afford litigants their day in court on the merits of their claim”. Id. at 882.

In this matter, Stubbs was notified of Paars' claim for the removal of the wrongful liens filed by Stubbs against Paars' property and of the time and place set for the hearing on the issue. Stubbs appeared, fully prepared to argue the merits of his claim for a lien against said property, and did in fact present the arguments to the trial court. The issue was fully and fairly litigated and the trial court's decision on the wrongful lien should be upheld.

VII. CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based upon the record and the arguments set forth above, Appellees respectfully request that the ruling of the trial court be affirmed and that Appellees be awarded their attorney fees for having to defend this appeal.